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ITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .
EASTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 3

p
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICAH
INDICTMETNT

- against -
Cr. No.

OLGA NOVOGORODSKY, BRODIE Jir. 18, Us.C., 8§ 371,
QKON UMANA, M.D., } ¥lggz(a) (1), 98z2(a) (7},
IGOR ISHCHUK, . 982 (), 1347, 1349,
IGOR KULESHOV, AN i 1956 (a) {1) (A) (1),
LEONID ZALKIND, B ) 1956 (a) (1) (B) (i},

also known as "“Lenny” and 1956 (h), 2 and 3551 gt seq.;

“Lenya,” T. 42, U.S.C., E&§
NIAZALY KAIPOV, 1320a-7b{b) (1) and

also known as "“Niaz,” 1320a-7bi{b) {2))
YEFIM MORCHIK,

also known as “Fima,”
PAVEL ZBORQOVSKIY,

also known as “Pasha” and

“Paul,” and
GREGORY KONOPLYA,

also known as "“Grisha,”

Defendants.
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - _.X
THE GRAND JURY CHARGES:
INTRODUCTION

At all times relevant to this Indictment, unless

otherwise indicated:

i

Background

k. The Medicare and Medicald Prodrams

1. The Medicare program (“Medicare”) was a federal

health care program providing benefits to persons who were over

re

he age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered by the



Services. Individuals who received besnefits under Medicare were
referred to as Medicare speneficiaries.”

5 Medicare covered the COSLS of physicians' services
and outpatient care, such as physical therapy. occupaticnal
therapy and diagnostic tests. Generally, Medicare covered these
costs if, among other requirements, they were medically
necessary and ordered by & physician.

3. The New York State Medicaid program (*Medicaid”)
was a federal and state health care program providing penefits
ro individuals and families who met financial and other
eligibility requirements. cMS was responsible for overseeing the
Medicaid program 1n participating states, including New York.
Individuals who received benefits under Medicald were also
referred to as “beneficiaries.”

4. Medicaid covered the COSLS of medical services and
products ranging from routine preventive medical care for
children to institutional care for the elderly and disabled.
nmong the specific nedical services and products provided by
Medicaid were physical therapy and diagnostic tests. Generally,
Medicaid covered these COSLS if, among other requirements, they

were medically necessary and ordered by a physician.



medicare and Medicald were each & “health care

Ui

penefit program,” as defined by Title 18, United States Cods,
Section 24 {b).
€. A physician oOr medical clinic that sought to

participate in Medicare or Medicaid would obtain a provider
identification number {"PIN"}). The PIN allowed a physician or
medical clinic to submit claims to Medicare and Medicaid for
reimbursement of the cost of treatment they provided to
beneficiaries. A medical provider was required to use its PIN
when submitting a claim for reimbursement.

7. Medical providers were authorized to submit claims
to Medicare and Medicaid only for services they actually
rendered and were required O maintain patient records verifying
the provision of services. By submitting the claim, the
provider certified, among other things, that the services that
were rendered to the patient were medically necessary.

8. Medicaid covered the transportation of
peneficiaries to and from Medicaid providers by ambulette to
receive Medicaid covered services wnen such transportatlion was
medically necessary because the beneficiary could not otherwise
pe transported by public transportation, taxi or livery service.

B. The Companies and the Defendants

5. Cropsey Medical Care PLLC (*Cropsey”} was a New

vork State Professional Limited Liability Corporation doing



purported to provide, among other things, physical thearapy,
diagnostic testing, nerve conduction tests, podiatry Services,
urology services and other related services to Medicare and
Medicaid beneficiaries.

10. Almaz Transportation, Inc. (*Almaz”} was a New
York corporation doing business in Brooklyn, New York. Almaz
was authorized by Medicaid to transport beneficiaries to medical
clinics so the beneficiaries could receive medical services.
Almaz transported beneficiaries to Cropsey and billed Medicaid
for such transportation.

11. G & M Ambulette Service, Inc. (“G&M") was a New
York corporation doing business in Brooklyn, New York. G&M was
authorized by Medicaid to transport peneficiaries to medical
clinics so the beneficiaries could receive medical services. G&M
rransportad beneficiaries to Cropsey and pbilled Medicaid for
such transportation.

12. Legal Ambulette Service, Inc. (“"Legal Ambulette”)
was a New York corporation doing business in Brooklyn, New York.
Legal Ambulette was authorized by Medicaid to transport
beneficiaries to medical clinics so the peneficiaries could

receive medical services. Legal Ambulette transported

i



-

hensficiaries to Cropsey and billed tMedicaid for such
cransportation.
13. Tne defendant OLGA NOVOCORODSKY was the managdex

=

of Cropsey. Among other things, NOVOGORGDSKY managed the daily
operations of Cropsey.

14. The defendant OKON UMANA, M.D., was the medical
director and a rendering physician at Cropsey.

15. The defendant IGOR ISHCHUK was an employee of
Cropsey.

16. The defendants YEFIM MORCHIK, also known as
wFima,” PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also known as “Pasha” and *paul,” and
GREGORY KONOPLYA, also known as “Grisha,” were patient
recrulters.

17. The defendants IGOR KULESHOV, LEONID ZALKIND,
also known as “Lenny” and “Lenya,” NIAZALY KAIPOV, also known as
wNiaz," and PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, alsoc known as “Pasha” and “Paul,”

conducted financial transactlions for Cropsey.

IT. The Fraudulent Scheme

1. From approximately November 2009 to October 2012,
the defendants OLGA NOVOGORODSKY, OKON UMANA, M.D. and IGCR
ISHCHUK, together with others, executed a fraudulent scheme in
which they paid and caused to be paid cash kickbacks to Medicare
and Medicaid beneficiaries to 1nduce tnose beneficiaries to

travel to Cropsey and to submit to physicians’ SEervices,



and diagnostic tests that they did not n=ed.
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e defendants also created and caused to be created fraud
medical records for these besneficiaries which, among other
things, falsely reflected that the benaficiaries received
medical services that were never provided and falsely indicated
that prescribed treatments were medically necessary. The
defendants then caused the submission of false and fraudulent
claims to Medicare and Medicaid on behalf of Cropsey and
rendering physicians that sought reimbursement for the services
listed in the fraudulent medical records. As a result of this
fraudulent scheme, Cropsey submitted more than $8.1 million in
fraudulent claims teo Medicare. Also as a result of this
fraudulent scheme, Cropsey submitted more than §5.7 millicn in
fraudulent claims to Medicaid.

19. The defendants YEFIM MORCHIK, also known as
“Fima,"” PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also known as “Pasha” and “Paul,k” and
GREGORY KONOPLYA, alsc known as “"Grisha,” paid and received cash
kickbacks to Medicare and Medicald peneficiaries and others to
induce the transportation of beneficiaries to and from Cropsey
and other locations to supposedly receive medical services.

20. By transporting, and causing to be transported,
beneficiaries to and from Cropsey, the defendants YEFIM MORCHIK,
also known as “Fima,” PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also known as “Pasha”

and “Paul,” and GREGORY KONOPLYA, also known as "“Grisha,” were
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apile to submit, and cause tO e submitted, clalms tO Medicald
for cransporcation services.

21 . The defendants OLGLE NOVOGORODSKY, OKON UMANA,
M.D., and others wrote checks from Cropsey's bank accounts that
received Medicare and Medicaid reimbursements Lo companies
controlled by the defendants IGOR KULESHOV, LEONID ZALKIND, also
known as ‘Lenny” and “Lenya,” NIAZALY KAIPOV, also known as
“Niaz,” and PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also known as wpasha” and “Paul,”
to them individually and to other individuals associated with
them. These checks did not represent payment for any legitimate
service at or for Cropsey. Tnstead, the defendants KULESHOV,
AL KIND, KAIPOV and ZBOROVSKIY cashed the checks LO obtain cash
to be paild as kickbacks to peneficiaries.

COUNT ONE
{(Conspiracy to Ccommit, Health Care Fraud)

22. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
21 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth in this
paragraph.

53 . In or about and between November 2009 and October
2012, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the
Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants OLGAE
NOVOGORODSKY and OKON UMANA, M.D., together with others, did
knowingly and willfully conspire to execute a scheme and
artifice to defraud one Or MOIE health care benefit programs,

specifically Medicare and Medicaid, and to obtain, by means of
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materially false and fraudulent pretenses, Yepress
promisss, MONEY and property owned by and under the custody ana
control of Medicare and Medicaid, in connection with the
deli&ery of and payment for health care benefits, items and
services, contrary to Ticle 18, United States Code, Section

1347.

(Ticle 18, United States Code, Sections 1349 and 3551
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COUNT _TWO
{Conspiracy ULO Receive and Pay Health Care Kickbacks}

24 . The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
51 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth in this
paragraph.

25. In or about and between November 2009 and October
2012, beoth dates heing approximate and inclusive, within the
Eastern District of New vork and elsewhere, the defendants OLGA
NOVOGORODSKY, OKON UMANA, M.D., IGOR ISHCHUK, YEFIM MORCHIK,
also known as “Fima," PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also known as “Pasha’
and “Paul,” and GREGORY KONOPLYA, alsc known as “Grisha,”
together with others, did knowingly and willfully conspire:

a. to solicit and receive cash kickbacks directly
and indirectly, overtly and covertly, (1) 1in return for
referring Medicare and Medicaid peneficiaries to Cropsey. almaz,
G&M and Legal Ambulette for the furnishing of and arranging for

the furnishing of items and services for which payment may De



made in whole and in part under Medicar
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in return for purchasing, leasing, and ordering, and arranglng
for and recommanding purchasing, leasing and ordering goods,
facilities, services and items for which payment may be made 1in
whole and in part under Medicare and Medicaid, contrary'to Ticle
42, United Sﬁétes Code, Section 1320a-7b{b) (1} and

b. to offer and pay cash kickbacks directly and
indirectly, overtly and covertly, to perscns Lo induce those
persons (1) to refer Medicare and Medicaid beneficiaries to
Cropsey, Almaz, G&M and Legal Ambulette for the furnishing of
and arranging for the furnishing of items and services for which
payment may be made in whole and in part under Medicare and
Medicaid, and {2) to purchase, lease, crder and arrange for and
recommend purchasing, leasing and ordering goods, facilities,
services and items for which payment may be made in whole and in
part under Medicare and Medicaid, contrary to Title 42, United
States Code, Secticn 1320a-7b(b) (2) .

26. 1In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effect
its opbjects, within the Ekastern District of New York and
elsewhere, the defendants OLGA NOVOGORODSKY, OKON UMANA, M.D.,
IGOR ISHCHUK, YEFIM MORCHEIK, also known as “Fima," PAVEL
ZBORQVSKIY, also known as vpasha” and "Paul,” and GREGORY

KONOPLYLA, also known as wGrisha,” together with others,



commitrted and caused to be committed, among cthers, the
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27.

QVERT ACTS

Oon or about August 12, 2011, the defendant
I1GOR ISHCHUK paid casn to an individual,
whose identity is known to the Grand Jury,
who posed as a beneficiary at Cropsey
(vcS-1") for past visits to Cropsey and to
further induce C5-1 to receive future
medical services at Cropsey.

Oon or apout January 5, 2012, the defendant
vEFIM MORCHIK, also known as “Fima,” paid
cash to an individual, whose identity 1is
known to the Grand Jury, (v*CS-2") to induce
the referral of beneficiaries.

Oon or about February 23, 2012, the defendant
GREGORY KONOPLYA, also known as “Grisha,”
paid cash to C5-2 to induce the referral of
beneficiaries.

Oon or abocut March 2, 2012, the defendant
DAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, alsc known as “Pasha” and
»paul,” accepted a payment from CS5-2 to

induce the referral of peneficiaries.

United States Code, Sections 371 and 3551

COUNTS THREE THROUGH SIX

{Paying Health Care Kickbacks)

The allegaticns contained 1in paragraphs 1 through

21 are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth in

this paragraph.

28.

On or about the dates identified below, within

the Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants

identified below, together with others, did knowingly and

10



willfully offer and pay remuneration, specifically casnh
kickbacks, directly and indirectly, overtly and covertly, to the

persons identified below to induce such persons (1) to refer
Medicare and Medicaid beneficiaries to Cropsey, Almaz, G&M and
Legal Ambulette for the furnishing of and arranging for the
furnishing of items and sexrvices for which payment may be made
in whole and in part under Medicare and Medicaid, and (2} to
purchase, lease, order and arrange for and recommend purchasing,
leasing and ordering goods, facilities, services and items for
which payment may be made in whole and in part under Medicare

and Medicaid, as set forth below:

THREE IGOR ISHCHUK g8/12/11 pPaid kickback to
Ccs-1

FOUR YEFTM MORCHIK 1/5/12 paid kickback to
cs-2

FIVE - GREGORY KONOPLYA 2/23/12 Paid kickback to
C5-2

SIX GREGORY KONOPLYA 4/5/12 paid kickback to
Cs-2

{(Title 42, United States Code, Secticn 1320a-7bib) (2}

Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 3551 et seqg.)

=
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COUNTS SEVEN THRO
(Recsiving Health (are Kickbacks)

5g. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
51 are realleged and incorporated as though fully set forth in
this paragraph.

30. On or about the dates identified below, within
the Eastern District of New vork and elsewhere, rhe defendants
identified below, together with others, did knowingly and
willfully solicit and receive remuneration, specifically cash
kickbacks, directly and indirectly, overtly and covertly, 1in
return for (1} referring Medicare and Medicaid peneficiaries to
Cropsey, Almaz, GeM and Legal Ambulette for the furnishing and
arranging for the furnishing of items and services for which
payment may be made in whole and in part under Medicare and
Medicaid, and (2} purchasing, leasing, ordering and arranging
for and recommending purchasing, leasing and ordering goods,
facilities, services and items for which payment may be made 1in
whole and in part under Medicare and Medicaid, as set forth

helow:

Received kickback
from CS-2 }

IGOR ISHCHUK 1/26/12

12
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Received kickback
from CS5-2

EIGHT YEFIM MORCHIK

(Tigle 42, United States Code, Section 1320a-7b(b) (1}
Title 18, United States Code, Sections 2 and 3551 et seg.!

COUNTS NINE THROUGH TWELVE
(Health Care Fraud)

31. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
21 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth in this
paragrapi.

32 oOn or about the dates identified below, within
the Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants
OLGAE NOVOGORODSKY and OKON UMANA, M.D., together with others,
did knowingly and willfully execute and attempt to execute a
scheme and artifice to defraud Medicare, and to obtain, by means
of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations
and promises, money and property owned by, and under the custedy
and control of, Medicare, in connection with the delivery of and

payment for health care benefits, 1ltems and services, as set

forth below:

NINE cs-1 7/22/2011 Office Visit
(99213)

TEN A.D. a/5/2012 office Visit
(99213)

13



ELEVEN B.Y. 5/2/2012 Office Visit
(99214)

TWELVE Z.%. 5/7/2012 Office Visit
(99213)

(Title 18, United States Code, Secrions 1347, 2 and

3551 et seq.)

COUNT THIRTEEN
(Money Laundering Conspiracy)

33. The allegations contained in paragrapns 1 through
21 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth in this
paragraph.

14, TIn or about and between November 2009 and Qctober
2012, both dates being approximate and inclusive, within the
Fastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants OLGA
NOVOGORODSKY, OKOM UMANA, M.D., IGOR KULESHOV, LEONID ZALKIND,
also known as “Lenny” and “Lenya,” NIAZALY KAIPOV, also known as
"Niaz,"” and PAVEL ZBOROVSKIY, also xnown as *Pasha” and "Paul ”
together with others, did knowingly and intentionally conspire
to conduct financial transactions affecting ilnterstate commerce,
specifically the making, cashing and depositing of checks, which
transactions involved the proceeds of specified unlawful
activity, specifically health care fraud, contrary to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1347, and illegal health care

kickbacks, contrary to Title 42, United State Code, Section

[
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1320a-7p(b), knowing that the Dproperty involvad in such
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financial transactions represented the procesds 0f some
unlawful activity, (a) with the intent to promote the carrying
on of such specified unlawful activities, éontrary to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1956 (a) (1) (&) (1), and (D) knowing
that such financial transactions were designed in whole and 1n
part to conceal and disguise the nature, the location, the
source, the ownership, and the control of the proceeds of the
specified uniawful activities, contrary to Title 18, United
States Code, Section 1956 (a) (1) (B) (1) .

(Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956 (h} and
3551 et seq.!

COUNTS FOURTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-FIVE
(Money Laundering)

35. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
21 are realleged and incorporated as if fully set forth in this
paragraph.

1. On or about the dates identified below, within
the Eastern District of New York and elsewhere, the defendants
identified below did knowingly and intentionally conduct and
attempt to conduct one or more financial transactlons affecting
interstate commerce, which financial transactlens involved the
prodeeds of specified unlawful activity, specifically health
care fraud, contrary Lo Title 18, United States Code, Section

1347, and illegal health care kickbacks, contrary to Title 42,

15
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propsrty invcolved in the rransactions repressnced the procesds
of some form of unlawful activity, {(a) with the intent to
promote the carrying on of such specified unlawful activities,
and (b) knowing that such financial transactions were designed
in whole and in part to conceal and disguise the nature, the
location, the source, the ownership, and the cegntrol of the

proceeds of the specified unlawful activities, as set forth

below:

FOURTEEN | OLGA 1/27/12 Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
NOVOGORODSKY check #1275, in the
approximate amount Of
$900, payable to “Igor

Kuleshov”
FIFTEEN OLGA 1/27/12 Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
NOVOGORODSKY check #1274, 1in the

approximate amount of
$1,033, payable to

“Semerka”
SIXTEEN OKON UMANA, 1/4/12 Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
M.D. check #1179, in the

approximate amount of
$2,500, payable to "SPV"

SEVENTEEN | OKON UMANA, 1/4/12 Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
M.D. check #1180, in the
approximate amount of
$1,500, payable to “Pavel

Zborovskiy”
EIGHTEEN { IGOR 11/8/11 Negotiated Cropsey Chase
KULESHOV Bank check #3645, in the

approximate amount of
$1,820, payable to
“Semerka, Inc.”




NINETEEN

IGOR
KULESHOV

11/9/11

Negotiated Cropsey Chase
Bank check #3648, 1n the
approximate amount of
51,513, payable to “Igor
Kuleshov”

TWENTY

LECNID
ZALKIND

1/6/12

Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1405, in the
approximate amount of
$1,550, payable to "DMC
Media”

TWENTY -
ONE

LEONID
ZALKIND

3/8/12

Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1408, in the
approximate amount of
$1,750, payable to "DMC
Media”

TWENTY -
TWC

NIAZALY
KAIPOV

2/21/12

Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1366, in the
approximate amount of
$1,100, payable to “Avat
Services, Inc.”

TWENTY -
THREE

NIAZALY
KAIPGOV

2/21/12

Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1372, in the
approximate amount of
52,200, payable to “All
Pesource Services, Inc.”

TWENTY -
FOUR

PAVEL
ZBORCVSKIY

1/4/12

Negotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1179, in the
approximate amount of
52,500 payable to "SBV”

TWENTY -
FIVE

PAVEL
ZBOROVSKIY

1/4/12

Megotiated Cropsey TD Bank
check #1180, in the
approximate amount of
$1,500, payable to "Pavel
Zborovskiy”

1956{a) {1) {&) (1)

(Title 18,

17

United States Code, Sections

and 1956 (a) {1) {B){i), 2 and 3551 et seq. )
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37.

defendants charged in Counts cne through Twelve that,
conviction of any such offenses,

forfeiture in accordance with Title 18,

section 982(a) (7).

offenses to forfeit any

constitutes or is derived, directly oOr indirectly,

proceeds traceable to th

38.
property,
(a)

diligence;

deposited with, a third

{c) has
the court;
(d) has
or
(e} has

which cannot be divided
it is the intent of the

United States Code,

The Unite

as a result of any act oOr

Section 982{b},

d States hereby gives notice to the
upon their
the government will seek

United States Code,

which reguires any person convicted of such

property. real and personal, that
from gross

e commission of the offenses.

I1f any of the above-described forfeitable

omission of the defendants:

cannot be located upon the exercise of due

peen transferred or sold to, oOT

party;

peen placed beyond the jurisdiction of
peen substantially diminisned in value;
peen commingled with other property
without difficulty;

United States, pJrsuant to Title 18,

to seek forfeiture of any

1e
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such defendants up to the value of th
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other propsriy o
forfeitable property described 1n this forfeiture allegation.
(Title 18, United States Code, Sections %82({a) {7) and

982 (b)) .

CRIMINATL FORFEITURE ALLEGATIONS
AS TO COUNTS THIRTEEN THROUGH TWENTY-FIVE

32. The United States hereby gives notice to the
defendants charged in Counts Thirteen through Twenty-Five that,
upon conviction of any such offenses, the government will seek
forfeiture in accordance with Title 18, United States Code,
Section 982(a) (1), of all property involved in each offense of
conviction in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956, or conspiracy to commit such offenses, and all property
traceable to such property.

40. If any of the above-described forfeitable
property, as a result of any act or omission of the defendants:

{a} cannot be located upon the exercise of due
diligence;

{b} has been transferred or sold to, or
deposited with, a third party;

(c} has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of
the court;

{d) has been substantially diminished in value;

or

19



te} has been commingled with other proo
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which cannot be divided without difficulty;
it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Titlie 18,
United States Code, Section 98B2{b), to seek forfeiture| of any
other property of such defendants up to the value of the
forfeitable property describedlin this forfeitufe allepgation,
(Title 18, United States Code, Sectiecns 982{h) (1) and

982 (b})

A TRUE BILL
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LOR?ETA EN. LYNCH —
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MEW YORK

gdjszﬂff 'EZLQ/G)&M —6/ QZ&'{ u-/{"?u-w:“'c,s,\c‘h

SAMUEL S. SHELDON

DEPUTY CHIEF

CRIMINAL DIVISION, FRAUD SECTION
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
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